
GLEN ROCK PLANNING BOARD 

Minutes of the December 5, 2019 Meeting 

7:30 PM 

 

In attendance:  Robert VanLangen, Chairman, Harold Knapp, Mayor-Elect Kristine 

Morieko and R. Scott King.   Also in attendance were Steven Lydon, P.P., Borough 

Planner, Carl O’Brien, P.E., Borough Engineer and Kathryn Walsh, Esq, Board Attorney.  

 

The Board Secretary called the roll and read the Sunshine Law. 

 

Mayor-Elect Morieko made a motion to accept the minutes of the work sessions of 

September 30 and November 4, 2019, which was seconded by Mr. King.  The voice vote 

was as follows: 

 

AYES:  VanLangen, Knapp, Morieko, King 

NAYS: None 

 

Old Business: 

 

Discussion and recommendation regarding Planning Board suggestions to the Mayor and 

Council as to a list of priorities for them to consider and act upon based on Master Plan 

proposals.  The purpose will be to remind all parties of what the Master Plan and 

Reexamination plans called for with an eye towards PROACTIVE steps to accomplish 

these goals.   

 

Mr. VanLangen asked that continuing discussion of this matter has been postponed to the 

January 9, 2020 agenda. 

 

New Business: 

 

Block 53, Lots 2 & 3 

115 Rutland Road 

Applicant:  Rocco and Carlin Laginestra 

 

Applicant requests minor subdivision approval to transfer a portion of property from Lot 

3 (399 Dunham Place) to Lot 2 (115 Rutland Road.) 

 

Aiyana Gallardo, Esq. of Waters, McPherson, McNeill noted her appearance on behalf of 

the applicants, Rocco and Carlin Laginestra of 115 Rutland Road. 

 

Ms. Gallardo stated that her clients wish to purchase a portion of property from their rear 

neighbors.  Their lot would increase from .42 acres to .47 acres and their neighbors’ lot 

would decrease from 1.10 acres to 1.04 acres.  No variances are requested.  Their 

neighbors have an oversized lot and consented to this application. The property being 

transferred amount to 2,444 sq.ft.  This subdivision would bring the rear yard setback into  

 



GLEN ROCK PLANNING BOARD 

Minutes of the December 5, 2019 Meeting 

Pg. 2 of 9 

 

conformance.  Ms .Gallardo stated subdivision deeds would be filed to perfect should the  

Board looked favorably on the application.  A metal fence in the rear of the property 

would be moved to the new subdivision line.  

 

Brian Shortino, P.E. of Bertin Engineering was sworn in by Ms. Walsh.  After giving the 

Board the benefit of his education and professional experience and confirming his license 

is in good standing with the State of New Jersey, he was accepted as an expert in the field 

of civil engineering. 

 

Mr. Shortino confirmed that his office prepared the subdivision map.  The subject 

properties are 115 Rutland Road and 399 Dunham Place.  The properties are contiguous 

at the rear property lines.  He confirmed that statements by Ms .Gallardo of how much 

property is being transferred and that no variances are being requested. 

 

Ms. Walsh questioned whether the front yard non-conformity will remain and Mr. 

Shortino stated no changes are proposed for the front yard. 

 

No one in the audience had any comments or questions regarding this application. 

 

A motion to approve the application for minor subdivision was made by Mayor-Elect 

Morieko and seconded by Mr. King.  The voice vote was as follows: 

 

AYES:  VanLangen, Knapp, Morieko, King 

NAYS: None 

 

The resolution will be memorialized at the next meeting. 

 

Block 55, Lots 2,3,4,5,6,7 & 24 

175 Rock Road 

Applicant: SRGR Holdings, LLC 

 

Applicant requests preliminary and final site plan approval with variances for 

construction of covered patio area in rear parking lot adjacent to, and an extension of, 

Stone and Rail restaurant. 

 

Joseph Mecca, Esq. noted his appearance in opposition of the application.  He represents 

three homeowners: The Rausch Family at 575 Doremus, The Sommer Family at 571 

Doremus and the Chirico Family at 565 Doremus Avenue.   

 

Mr. Mecca had some issues with the notice provided by the applicant.  Ms. Walsh 

reviewed the notice and recommended to the Board to accept the notice as given as it 

fulfilled the notice requirements.  The Board agreed. 



GLEN ROCK PLANNING BOARD 

Minutes of the December 5, 2019 Meeting 

Pg. 3 of 9 
 

Mr. Mecca also stated that the application should be heard as a use variance by the 

Zoning Board, as he contends outdoor dining is not a permitted use where there is just an 

overhang and not walls.  After some discussion, with comments from Mr. Lydon and Mr. 

Siss, it was agreed that the application stay with the Planning Board at this point and let 

the application continue. 

 

Darryl Siss, Esq., of Teschon, Riccobene, & Siss noted his appearance for the applicant, 

SRGR Holdings, LLC, operating and Stone and Rail restaurant. 

 

Mr. Siss stated that this is an application for an extension of the existing restaurant to 

allow dining under an overhang to be constructed in the rear of the restaurant.  He stated 

that the area in questioned is leased to them for their use.  He stated that the sidewalk café 

ordinance recognizes the desire of the public for dining outside the normal confines of a 

restaurant.  He stated that they meet all the requirements of the zoning ordinance except 

they are within 10’ of a residential lot line (where 25’ is required) and the other is the 

continuation of an existing condition in that the sidewalk is 5’ where 6’ is required.   

 

Mr. Siss stated that a planter to stop any vehicular traffic is proposed.  He has a copy of 

the Police Chief’s recommendation and will consult with his client and professionals if 

revisions are proposed.  The application proposes to move the dumpster further towards 

Rock Road and away from the residents in the rear.   

 

Mr. Siss has 4 witnesses:  his client, architect, engineer and planner.  The planner was not 

available tonight but will be next month.   

 

Mr. Brian Crowe, of 46 Harding Road, was sworn in by Ms. Walsh.  Mr. Crowe stated he 

is one of the owners of the applicant and the operator of the restaurant.  He stated that in 

January, the restaurant will be open two years.  Renovations to the restaurant were going 

on for a year before that.  The cuisine of the restaurant is that of a gastro-pub serving a 

new-American menu specializing in craft beers.  The restaurant is closed on Mondays 

and operates Tuesday-Sunday, opening at 11 AM and closing at 1 am Sunday, Tuesday 

and Wednesday, and at 2 AM on Friday and Saturday.  They employ approximately 20 -

25 employees at any one time.   

 

Mr. Crowe stated their busy days are Thursday, Friday and Saturday.  Busiest times of 

year are Spring, Fall and Holiday season.  Peak lunch period is 12:30-2 pm and dinner 

between 6:30-7:30 pm.  In addition, in the late evening they have town people coming in 

for a drink or two and perhaps appetizers.  The kitchen closes at 11 PM.  He stated the 

age ranges from early 20’s up to 70-80 year olds.  They do have sidewalk dining in 

season that seats approximately 18 people.   

 

 



GLEN ROCK PLANNING BOARD 

Minutes of the December 5, 2019 Meeting 

Pg. 4 of 9 
 

Mr, Crowe stated he has been in the restaurant business since 1999, and has experience as 

a server, bartender, and owner.  He believes open air dining will be well received.  He 

stated no cooking will take place outside.  He stated he has experience keeping patrons 

where they are supposed to stay and will define the space to restrict patrons.   

 

Mr. Crowe stated the seating configuration is flexible.  He stated he is unaware of 

anything similar in the area.  He stated he is anticipating seating for approximately 100 

people. 

 

Mr. Crowe described several photographs showing the existing conditions of the rear of 

the restaurant.  He stated that there is existing landscaping, statues and a bar structure that 

was placed there by the former occupant, now the landlord o the property.  Mr. Crowe 

stated that it was the former occupant’s intention to do some variation of what Mr. Crowe 

is requesting now, but never followed through with applications.  Mr. Crowe stated the 

dumpster area will be moved to a location further away from the residences and proposed 

eating area.  He stated all the businesses at 175 Rock use those dumpsters.  Mr. Crowe 

stated he does not maintain the dumpster. Mr. King asked when the restaurant is opened 

until 2 AM and Mr. Crowe stated Friday and Saturday.  Ms. Spiller asked if it is Mr. 

Crowe’s intention to have the outdoor seating open the same hours as the restaurant.  He 

stated he will have the patio open as many hours as permissible.  Mr. Crowe stated it is 

not his intention to have an outdoor bar- drinks will be prepared inside and brought out 

by servers.  Open air dining will be used as much as weather permits.  A fire pit and 

portable heaters will expand the season. 

 

Mayor Elect Morieko asked if they will be replacing the existing bar with another bar.  

Mr. Crowe stated that his intention is to serve drinks prepared indoors.  Mr. Crowe stated 

that it is his intention to regulate the behavior of the outdoor patrons as he does inside of 

the bar.  Mr. Crowe stated he will comply with any ADA compliance issues.  Mr. Crowe 

would consider renting this area out for private parties. He stated music would consist of 

low background music from speakers.  Mr. Siss stated he would not be opposed to 

reasonable restrictions by the Board regarding music.  Mr. VanLangen asked if they 

would consider a restriction of closing the patio earlier than the restaurant.  Mr. Crowe 

stated his intention is to be a good neighbor, so would definitely entertain restrictions.  

Mr. Crowe stated his kitchen closes at 11 PM.  Mr. Crowe stated he is still deciding on 

hostesses’ responsibilities.  

 

Mr. Mecca stated Mr. Crowe runs a great business, but what if the business was to be 

sold?  Upon questioning, Mr. Crowe stated he proposes to have approximately 100 seats 

in the patio area.  Mr. Crowe stated he envisions a conversation area with couches and a 

gas fire pit.  Mr. Crowe stated he is unaware of any restaurant in the area that has an 

outdoor seating area adjacent to a residential area.  Mr. Crowe stated that this is possible 

due to the unique location of the patio area.  He stated it would increase his business and  



GLEN ROCK PLANNING BOARD 

Minutes of the December 5, 2019 Meeting 

Pg. 5 of 9 

 

be a desirable destination for patrons.  Mr. Crowe is aware of complaints from the 

neighbors regarding vermin from the dumpsters.  He wanted to again state that the 

dumpsters are overseen by the landlord, not him, and that all the businesses use the 

dumpsters.  Mr. Mecca asked where people smoke.  Mr. Crowe stated that most patrons 

will go out the front, but some go to the rear parking area.  Smoking would not be 

permitted in the patio area.  Mr. Crowe stated that there is a water line to statues adjacent 

to Rock Road.   

 

No one from the public had questions for Mr. Crowe at this time. 

 

Mr. Lydon asked why there is a walkway from the patio area to the parking area adjacent 

to CVS.  Mr. Crowe stated that patio patrons will realize that is the quickest way to get to 

their car.  The intention is to light that area for safety.  Regarding patrons seating 

themselves in the patio area, that will have to be worked out with the manager at the time.  

The intention is to have either everyone enter at the front of the restaurant and be seated 

either inside or outside by the hostess, or possibly have a second hostess in the patio area. 

This will have to be worked out depending on need. 

 

Mr. Siss called Scott Bella, architect, to testify.  Mr. Bella was sworn in and accepted as 

an expert in the field of architecture after confirming his license was in good standing in 

the State of New Jersey. 

 

Mr. Bella stated a post and bean structure is being proposed.  It will be 100% open on all 

sides.  It will have miscellaneous seating throughout and perhaps a fire pit.  There is 

lighting proposed and sound panels on both the underside of the structure and the rear 

outside wall of the restaurant to reduce sound and reverberation.  He stated that height of 

the structure will be 16’ 4”, the same height as the existing restaurant.   

 

Mr. Bella stated the proposed layouts for seating is not definitive but for illustration 

purposes only.  Mr. Bella stated the lighting would be outside the structure and facing 

back to the building, having the least impact on the residents.  They will be shielded.  No 

lighting projecting out towards the neighbors.  The structure will be attached to the 

existing structure. 

 

Mr. Bella stated the structure is 76’ wide by 21’ deep.  Mr. Bella stated the roof will 

extend a little more than that and the engineering site plan should be considered more 

accurate in terms of size and location than his architectural rendering.   

 

Mr. Bella stated that the sound panels would be placed sporadically under the roof and 

along the wall.  He stated that he is not a sound professional and that the particulars 

would be worked out along the way.  His understanding is that you would put in as many  

 



GLEN ROCK PLANNING BOARD 

Minutes of the December 5, 2019 Meeting 

Pg. 6 of 9 

 

as necessary to achieve the desired result.  Mayor-Elect Morieko requested more details 

regarding the effectiveness of the sound panels. 

 

Mr. Bella stated the applicant does not yet have a final lighting design.  He will defer to 

the engineer for lighting information.  When asked about drainage, Mr. Siss stated that 

those questions will be answered by the engineer.  He also stated the lighting plan will be 

more permanent when they return next month. 

 

Mr. Bella stated he will clarify when the lights will be on and a security lighting plan. 

 

Mr. Bella stated there is approximately 14’ from the edge of the roof to the property line, 

but there is an easement beyond the property line.   

 

Mr. Bella stated they will come back with a more accurate seating plan.  The maximum 

number of seats are 106 seats, but the configuration will probably change.   

 

James Zsuffa, 561 Doremus Avenue, asked what the material of the existing building is, 

to which Mr. Bella stated it is stucco.  Mr. Zsuffa asked would that surface absorb or 

reflect noise, to which Mr.  Bella stated that sound panels will absorb noise and their 

intention is to install those panels to absorb as much noise as necessary.  An acoustical 

engineer was not consulted in this design.  Mr. Siss stated they will investigate this matter 

further.   

 

Bruce Rigg, P.E. was sworn in by Ms. Walsh.  Mr. Rigg was accepted as a professional 

in the field of engineering after verifying that his license is in good standing with the 

State of New Jersey.   

 

Mr. Rigg reviewed the site plan he prepared.  He also reviewed the waivers he requested 

because these are existing conditions that are not changing.   

 

Mr. Rigg stated that the site is made up of 7 separate lots.  There is also a 15’ wide 

easement on the rear portion of lot 23.  He stated that at one time Mr. Leone (the original 

owner) owned the property of Lot 23.  When it was sold, he retained an easement on that 

property.  The 15’ has been used as part of the subject property for quite a while. The 

previous owner made some improvements to the rear of the building and patio in 

anticipation in filing an application for outdoor dining, but never file the application.  The 

restaurant then changed hands to the present owner.   

 

Mr. Rigg stated the area is presently in a state of disrepair and the applicant is trying to 

get an approval to upgrade the area.  Mr. Rigg stated that the application only involves a 

small part of the total property.   

 



GLEN ROCK PLANNING BOARD 

Minutes of the December 5, 2019 Meeting 

Pg. 7 of 9 

 

Mr. Rigg stated that 2 parking spaces will be removed to make room for the proposed 

change of location of the dumpster enclosure.  One space will be replaced by striping the 

area where the dumpsters are now, and also includes a walkway to the outdoor seating.   

 

Mr. Rigg stated the structure maintains a 25’ separation from the adjoining property line 

except for a portion to the North which is only 10’ from the property line on one 

residential property.  If the building were enclosed, they would be meeting the setback in 

this zone.  There is a sidewalk that is currently 5’ wide, where the ordinance requires 6’.  

No changes are proposed. 

 

Planters are proposed to halt vehicular traffic.  Pedestrians will use the proposed 

walkway, which is between the planters.  Mr. Rigg stated that bollards are also being 

considered along with the planters suggested by the Police Chief.  They will do whatever 

is necessary to satisfy the requirement. 

 

Mr. Rigg stated that the proposed dumpster location is a better location than where it is 

now.   

 

Mr. Rigg discussed the proposed lighting and stated that he will recommend some 

changes to his client.  His aim is to provide enough lighting for safety and security but 

not enough to annoy the adjacent residents.   

 

Mr. Rigg wanted the Board to know that the fence on the property is not on the property 

line but 3-4’ in and that there is landscaping between the fence and the property line.  Mr. 

Rigg stated the landscaping will be supplemented.   

 

Mr. Rigg discussed the drainage.  He stated that there is no increase in impervious 

coverage and their intention is to funnel the rain water off of the roof to existing drainage 

systems.  Exact details will be discussed with the client and revised at a later date. 

 

Mr. Rigg discussed the parking requirements.  The previous zoning officer offered an 

explanation of the previous approvals and summarized them in a letter dated June 7, 

2018.  In that letter, Mr. Berninger (the previous Zoning Officer) stated that there are 252 

parking spaces on the property. He stated that the 252 spaces satisfy a requirement of 

uses that require 405 spaces.  Because of this, any time there is a change of use (and 

change of parking requirement) no Planning Board approval is required as long as the 

combined parking requirement for all uses does not exceed 405 spaces. 

 

Mr. Rigg sated that based on parking requirements, the new outdoor seating area requires 

an additional 17 spaces- 1 space for every 100 sq ft.  Including the new covered area, the 

parking requirement of all uses on the property is 366, less than the 405 grandfathered in, 

so no parking variance is required.   



GLEN ROCK PLANNING BOARD 

Minutes of the December 5, 2019 Meeting 

Pg. 8 of 9 

 

Mr. Lydon questioned the parking ratio quoted by Mr. Rigg.  He was informed that the 

parking requirement for restaurants had changed and Mr. Rigg quoted the correct ratio. 

 

Mr. Rigg provided the Board with a visual representation of the distance between the 

homes on the 3 residential properties, and not the property lines.  There is a minimum of 

80’ to any of the houses.  The house that has the 10’ variance request, is 92’ away.  Mr. 

Rigg stated that all three houses have detached garages where the garages are between the 

house and the open air seating. 

 

Mr. Rigg acknowledged that the residents will be able to see the top of the roof from their 

property if they can see the roof of the existing restaurant, even with retaining wall and 

landscaping at the rear of the property. 

 

Mr. Rigg stated that he is unaware of any drainage issues on the site. He stated that the 

lighting figures chosen were specially chosen because they are shielded and the light 

points downward.   

 

Regarding the proposed walkway, Mr. Rigg stated that there is no step from the parking 

lot or into the seating area, so it could be accessible.  The purpose of the walkway is for 

pedestrian access from the parking lot to the outdoor seating area. Mr. Rigg again stated 

that they will install either planters or bollards that safely restrict vehicles from accidently 

going into the seating area.  

 

Mr. Lydon asked how young adults are going to kept away from the sight during non-

business hours.  Mr. Rigg deferred to Mr. Crowe.  Mr. Crowe stated that there are 

security cameras, there will be security lighting and just like with any other property, 

police will be called because those individuals would be trespassing on private property.  

 

Mr. Mecca stated that the area in question has always been a service area.  Mr. Rigg 

stated there are walkway and that this is the rear of the building.  Mr. Rigg stated that the 

stamped patio area currently existing and the bar currently existing were not done with 

approval, either by the Planning Board nor the Building Department.  Mr. Mecca asked 

does Mr. Rigg consider this the rear of the building.  Mr. Rigg stated it fronts on Rock 

Road and he himself has used the rear door to gain access to the building.  He considers it 

an alternative to the front entrance.   

 

Mr. Rigg stated there are 6 tenants in this building.  Mr. Mecca stated that all the doors to 

the tenants face the railroad, except maybe for CVS that has an entrance in the corner of 

the building.  Mr. Rigg agreed.  Mr. Rigg stated the back door is an alternative entrance. 

 

 

 



GLEN ROCK PLANNING BOARD 

Minutes of the December 5, 2019 Meeting 

Pg. 9 of 9 

 

Mr. Mecca reviewed the parking requirements.  Although a parking variance is not 

needed, Mr. Mecca stated that there are 252 spaces available and 366 needed, so that  

there is not enough parking for the need.  Mr. Rigg agreed that generically that is true, but 

that the number of required spaces are grandfathered, so no variance is needed.   

 

Upon questioning from Mr. Mecca, Mr. Rigg stated that the walkway to the North will be 

utilized by patrons wanting to go to the open air dining but are parked in the Northern 

parking lot.  People currently use that walkway but it could use some renovation. 

 

Mr. Rigg reviewed the proposed landscaping plan.  The planting heights proposed are 4-

6’ but grow quickly.  There will be an assortment of plantings.  The landscaping area will 

not be widened but filled in.  Mr. Rigg stated he will confer with the architect as to the 

size of the roof and clarify it next month. 

 

The application will continue at the January 9, 2020 meeting. 

 

Block 115, Lot 24 

7 Main Street 

Applicant:  Rodney House, LLC 

 

Applicant requests minor site plan approval with parking variance for conversion of the 

first story of a 2-story commercial building to a restaurant.  

 

At the start of the meeting, Mr. VanLangen announced that this application has been 

postponed until the January 9, 2020 at the request of the application.  No further notice 

will be required. 

 

 As there was nothing further before the Board, a motion to adjourn the meeting was 

made by Mr. King, seconded by Mayor-Elect Morieko and passed unanimously.  The 

meeting was adjourned at 10:05 PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

     

 

Nancy Spiller 

Board Secretary 


